



Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Minutes of a meeting of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee held at The Guildhall, St Giles Street, Northampton, NN1 1DE on Monday 7 February 2022 at 6.00 pm.

Present	Councillor Danielle Stone (Chair) Councillor Sally Beardsworth Councillor Michael Brown Councillor Paul Clark Councillor Rupert Frost Councillor Keith Holland-Delamere Councillor Mark Hughes Councillor David James Councillor Colin Morgan Councillor Ken Pritchard Councillor Ken Pritchard Councillor Azizur Rahman Councillor Richard Solesbury-Timms Councillor Walter Tarasiewicz
Substitute	Councillor Wendy Randall (For Councillor Ko

- Substitute Councillor Wendy Randall (For Councillor Koulla Jolley) Members:
- Apologies
forCouncillor Andrew Grant (Vice Chair)
Councillor Maggie Clubley
Councillor Koulla Jolley
Councillor Ian McCord
- Officers Martin Henry, Executive Director Finance (Section 151 Officer) Tracy Tiff, Deputy Democratic Services Manager Richard Woods, Democratic Services Officer

42. **Declarations of Interest**

There were no declarations of interest.

43. Minutes

The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 12 January 2022 were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chair, subject to the following amendment:

Minute 40: Budget Scrutiny

Amend the third paragraph to read as follows: "At the invitation of the Chair, Councillor Jonathan Harris addressed the Committee and thanked the Executive

Director – Finance and the wider finance team for all of the hard work and for the support that they had provided in sharing information and answering questions relating to the budget. Councillor Harris asked a number of detailed questions regarding the draft budget which were duly answered by officers".

44. Chair's Announcements

The Chair made the following announcements:

- 1. The Budget Scrutiny Task and Finish Group held on 27 January 2022 had been a big success, and on behalf of the Committee the Chair thanked all Officers who were involved in the setting up and running of the meeting.
- 2. Several Members of the Committee had recently attended a Treasury Management training session hosted by Officers, recordings of this training were available for any Members who were unable to attend.
- 3. That a Treasury Management Task and Finish Group would be established at the meeting of the Committee in March, with final details to be circulated in due course.
- 4. That consideration of the draft Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report would be deferred until approximately June or July of 2022 for the Committee's consideration and approval.

45. Urgent Business

There were no items of urgent business.

46. **Report from the Budget Scrutiny Task and Finish Group**

The Committee considered a report from the Deputy Democratic Services Manager which set out a number of recommendations from the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny to Cabinet on the Draft Budget 2022/2023 arising from the recent Budget Scrutiny process.

At the invitation of the Chair, Jane Wood, of Climate Action West Northants (CA-WN) addressed the Committee and set out CA-WN's response to the recognition of climate change mitigation and adaptation in West Northamptonshire Council's corporate plan objectives, specifically the commitment to achieve carbon neutrality by 2030 and proposed spending on Green and Clean, and asked a number of questions of the budget regarding how these commitments would be achieved.

In response to the public address, the Committee agreed to propose a further recommendation to Cabinet that a dedicated Officer be employed on a fixed term contract for a period of five years, to work across the service areas on Carbon Neutrality, understand the Council's own carbon emissions, monitor and look to

reduce these emissions, and report the information publicly. It was proposed to fund this post from the Risk Reserves.

Members of the Committee thoroughly examined each of the recommendations to Cabinet, including the additional recommendation rising from the public address and, following some minor amendments, agreed the set of recommendations to Cabinet.

Resolved

(1) That the recommendations of Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee (annexe to the minutes as set out in the minute book) on the Draft Budget 2022/2023 be forwarded to the Executive Director – Finance and recommended to Cabinet for consideration.

47. **Review of Committee Work Plan**

The Committee considered its Work Programme.

Resolved

(1) That the Committee Work Programme 2021/2022 be noted.

The meeting closed at 6.54 pm

Chair:

Date: _____

This page is intentionally left blank

WEST NORTHAMPTONSHIRE COUNCIL

Report of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Recommendations of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the draft Budget 2022/2023 and Medium-Term Financial Plan – General Fund Revenue and Capital

Recommendations

It is recommended that:

1.1.1 This report is forwarded to the Executive Director – Finance to be appended to the report to full Council on the budget 2022/2023 and Medium-Term Financial Plan – General Fund Revenue and Capital and Housing Revenue Account; and the following recommendations of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee are highlighted:

1.1.2 Carbon Neutrality and Highways

It is recommended that more evidence and detail are required regarding the Council's Policy in respect of Climate Change setting out clear investment and plans.

There needs to be a costed plan which clearly sets out how the Council can be carbon neutral by 2030.

It is recommended to Cabinet that a dedicated Officer, on a fixed term contract for a period of five years, working across the Service Areas on Carbon Neutrality is employed and funded from the Risk Reserves. The initial remit of the role is to understand the Council's own carbon emissions, monitor and look to reduce these emissions. The emissions should be reported publicly.

Cabinet is informed that Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee welcomes the investment in the highways service and the increase of 19 new FTEs.

1.1.3 Children's Trust

Cabinet is informed that from the information provided by the Chief Executive of the Children's Trust that the budget for the Children's Trust appears to be robust and achievable and that Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee supports the long-term view of aiming for zero based budgeting in future years. There is a need for more funding for community-based investment.

1.1.4 Strength Based Working

Cabinet is informed that Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee supports the Strength Based working model and commends the savings detailed in the draft Budget 2022/2023. Investments should also be made from the outset to maximise long-term savings.

Grant funding must be used more effectively, and efficiency savings highlighted.

Cabinet is informed that Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee proposes a

move to the Living Wage Foundation's living wage of £9.90 for all staff employed by the Council from 1 April 2022. It is understood this will cost an additional £152,000 compared to what was included in the draft budget proposals.

We commend consideration for Care Staff to be similarly remunerated. Further information be presented to the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee by May 2022 regarding the national recommendation that all Care Staff should be remunerated at £11.50 per hour.

1 Purpose

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide, as part of the budget consultation process, the comments of West Northamptonshire Council's Corporate Overview and Scrutiny committee on the draft Budget 2022/2023 and Medium-Term Financial Plan – General Fund Revenue and Capital.

2 Context and Background

- 2.1 At its meeting on 30 November 2021, the Co-Ordinating Overview and Scrutiny Committee approved the work programme for Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Budget Scrutiny was included within the work programme 2021/2022.
- 2.2 At its meeting on 15th November 2021 the Committee received a verbal update on the Budget Setting Process for 2022-23. At its meeting on 13 December 2021, the Committee agreed how it would undertake budget scrutiny over a series of four meetings:

Meeting 1 – The publication of the draft Budget 2022/2023 and Medium-Term
Financial Plan – General Fund Revenue and Capital was highlighted.
Meeting 2 – The Chief Finance Officer went through the draft Budget

2022/2023 in detail to the Committee and responded to many detailed questions on the draft Budget. The Chief Finance Officer had also received

some questions ahead of the meeting and responded to those at the meeting too.

As requested, the Chief Finance Officer provided further information on the draft Budget to the Committee.

This meeting sought mapping of the draft Budget 2022/2023 to priorities contained with the Council's Corporate Plan.

The Committee also identified three areas to focus on:

- Carbon neutrality and Highways
- Children's Trust
- Strength Based Working model and financial savings associated with it

Meeting 3 – At this meeting the Committee, which took the form of a Task and Finish Group, the whole Committee received an update on the draft Budget by the Chief Finance Officer who made reference to the pressures that had emerged since the draft budget was produced and confirmed that no additional 'secret' meetings had taken place since Cabinet met in January on the budget. The Chief Finance Officer then ran through the exercise that had been completed to map the draft budget to the priorities of the Council as detailed in the Council's Corporate Plan.

The Task and Finish Group then split into three breakout groups, each looking at one of the key areas of the draft Budget that had been identified previously. The Lead Councillor from each Breakout Group fed back the views and comments of each of the Breakout groups. Each Breakout Group had 45 minutes to consider the key areas.

Meeting 4 – The Committee at its meeting on 7 February 2022, agreed its final report which comprises a summary of the outcome of its budget scrutiny and recommendations to Cabinet.

3 Budget Scrutiny

- 4.1 Key areas of the draft Budget 2022/2023 were considered by "Breakout Groups" of the Budget Task and Finish Group in relation to:
 - Carbon neutrality and Highways
 - Children's Trust
 - Strength Based Working model and financial savings associated with it

Carbon Neutrality and Highways

4.2 The comments and questions that the Task and Finish Group raised in relation to Carbon Neutrality and Highways were around the issues as detailed below:

- The Breakout Group conveys it concerns regarding the underinvestment of buses and bus services across West Northamptonshire. The current Policy is to ensure bus services are the same as they were five years ago, in five years' time. Several options are currently being investigated to do this.
- More evidence and detail are required regarding the Council's Policy in respect of Climate Change. There is a need for concrete performance and a need for more budget for climate change, i.e., there needs to be clear investment and plans set out; for example, more detail about the invest to save proposal and how money will be borrowed. The Breakout Group queried whether being carbon neutral by 2030 was a realistic target; especially as it perceived that the cost of borrowing would rise. Currently, £500,000 has been put in the budget for the next three years. The Council has a big ambition to be carbon neutral by 2030 but the Breakout Group queried that there is not a project in place to meet the ambition. It is important to have the pledge but there is not a clear steer of how much carbon the Council is omitting and the savings to be made. It needs to be ensured that the Council can be carbon neutral by 2030.
- The investment in the highways service and the increase of 19 new FTEs was welcomed.
- Important savings made will benefit other services, such as schools and school transport.

Children's Trust

- 4.3 The Breakout Group made the following comments in relation to the budget for the Children's Trust:
 - The Breakout Group agreed, that from the information provided by the Chief Executive of the Children's Trust that the budget was appeared to be robust and achievable. It was further agreed that the Task and Finish Group was comfortable with the budget and that improvement would be looked at following the next Ofsted report. It was added that it supported the long-term view of aiming for zero based budgeting in the future.
 - The welcome and retention bonuses now paid to staff were welcomed as was the reduction of the use of Agency Staff from 22.5% to 16%. The recruitment drive was being working upon with the aim to reduce this further. An initiative of this was to try to encourage Social Workers that had left the service to come back. The Task and Finish Group was pleased to note also that paperwork reduction was being investigated with the aim of giving Social Workers more time to look after children and therefore reduce the number of children living in care. Reduction of Social Worker caseloads was also being investigated.
 - $\circ~$ The drive to recruit more foster carers was welcomed.
 - $\circ~$ There is a need for more funding for community-based investment

Strength Based Working model and financial savings associated with it

- 4.4 The comments and questions that this Breakout Group raised in relation to Strength Based Working model and financial savings associated with it were around the issues as detailed below:
 - The Breakout Group support the Strength Based working model, noting that it ensures that a simple, timely pathway is provided to residents and independence is maximised. The Strength based working approach promotes independent living and drives supported living over residential care so that individuals have access to allowance and can live a better life
 - The national (foundation) living wage would be recommended to be paid to staff at a cost of £152,000
 - The Breakout Group agreed that West Northamptonshire Council should be the largest care provider in order that it could effectively manage the governance arrangements and ensure there is quality assurance and better delivery of training for staff.
 - The rationale for the current overspend was noted as a result of hospital discharges. The Breakout Group highlighted the need for a model for Adult Social Care that is sustainable.
 - The Breakout Group commended the savings detailed in the draft Budget 2022/2023 and felt that investments should also be made from the outset to maximise long-term savings.
 - The need to more effectively use grant funding and how efficiency savings could be made was highlighted.
- 4.5 Attached at **Appendix A** are the notes detailing the deliberations of each Breakout Group on the three key areas from the draft Budget 2022/2023 as detailed above.

4 Conclusion

- 4.1 Over a series of four meetings the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee undertook in-depth Budget Scrutiny and considered three key areas of the draft Budget 2022/2023: providing comment as part of the West Northamptonshire Council's budget consultation process.
- 4.2 The Committee agreed that its inaugural Budget Scrutiny process had worked very well and had been both engaging, informative and had enabled the Committee to fulfil its Budget Scrutiny role. It agreed that the process would commence earlier next year, around late autumn and training for the Committee on Budget Scrutiny will be scheduled.
- 4.3 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee requested further information and has been pleased to receive reports on how the budget aligns to the corporate plan, and our investment portfolio.
- 4.4 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee requested member training on Treasury Management and is pleased to report this has been delivered.

This page is intentionally left blank